
North Walsham High 
Street Heritage Action 
Zone Working Party 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Please contact: Emma Denny 
Please email: Emma.Denny@north-norfolk.gov.uk 
Please Direct Dial on: 01263 516010 
 
7th December 2020 
 
A meeting of The North Walsham High Street Heritage Action Zone Working Party will be remotely 
via Zoom on Wednesday, 9 December 2020 at 2.00 pm. 
 
 
Emma Denny 
Democratic Services Manager 
 
 
 
To Councillors: Ms V Gay, Mr R Kershaw and Mr E Seward 
 
Officers: Renata Garfoot, Jenni Jordan, Stuart Quick, Chris Young and Robert Young 
 
For information to: all other Members 

 

If you have any special requirements in order 
to attend this meeting, please let us know in advance 

If you would like any document in large print, audio, Braille, alternative format or in 
a different language please contact us 

 
Corporate Directors:  Nick Baker and Steve Blatch 

Tel 01263 513811  Fax  01263 515042  Minicom  01263 516005 
Email  districtcouncil@north-norfolk.gov.uk  Web site  www.north-norfolk.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

mailto:districtcouncil@north-norfolk.gov.uk


A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

 To receive apologies for absence, if any. 
 

 

2.   MINUTES 
 

1 - 6 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 22 September 2020 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declarations of interest. 
 

 

4.   GENERAL OVERVIEW 
 

 

 To receive a verbal update on the Project and discussions with Historic 
England 
 

 

5.   PROJECT MANAGER'S REPORT 
 

 

 To receive an update on Programme Delivery – to include the seven 
projects outlined in the Programme Design: 
 

Building Improvement Scheme 
 

The Cedars 
 

Market Place Public Realm Improvement 
 

Town Centre Re-stitching – improvements of lokes and gateways 
 

Heritage research and skills workshops 
 

Interpretation and signage 
 

Community consultation and engagement 
 

 

6.   CULTURAL PROGRAMMING 
 

7 - 8 

7.   CEDAR HOUSE 
 

 

8.   TOWN CENTRE PLACEMAKING 
 

 

9.   BUILDING IMPROVEMENT GRANT 
 

 

10.   PROJECT BUDGET 
 

 

 To receive an update on the budget for the Project 
 

 

11.   COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 

 To consider communications and publicity for the project 
 

 



12.   ISSUES & RISK LOG 
 

 

 To review the issues and risk log. 
 

 

13.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 

 To consider the next steps for the project and to agree a meeting date. 
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



NORTH WALSHAM HIGH STREET HERITAGE ACTION ZONE 
WORKING PARTY 
 
Minutes of the meeting of the North Walsham High Street Heritage Action Zone 
Working Party held on Tuesday 22nd September remotely via Zoom at 2.00 pm 
 
Committee 
Members Present: 

Ms V Gay Mr R Kershaw 

 Mr E Seward  
 
Officers in  
Attendance: 

The Economic Growth Manager, the Head of Economic and 
Community Development, the Project Enabler, the Project Manager, 
the Communications Officer and the Democratic Services Manager 

 
 
 
1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
None. 
 

2 MINUTES 
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 20th August 2020 were agreed and signed by 
the Chairman.  
 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 None. 
 

4 GENERAL / HISTORIC ENGLAND UPDATE 
 

 The Project Manager said that the national programme (69 schemes in total) had 
been formally launched. She thanked the Communications Team for their support 
and it had received good coverage in the press. There were now some dedicated 
pages on the Council’s website providing information on the project. Historic 
England had put officers in touch with lead officers on the other projects in the 
region, which included Great Yarmouth, Swaffham and Lowestoft. The Chairman 
commented that he was pleased to see that the media output on the project was well 
received but said it was important to maintain consistency and focus. Cllr V Gay 
added that she had appreciated the well-worded description of North Walsham.  
 
The Head of Economic and Community Development said that there had also been 
an announcement at the weekend regarding funding for the cultural programme. He 
said that this would take place later in the overall programme as the focus would be 
on the tangible outcomes initially. The Project Enabler confirmed that although the 
funding for the cultural programming had been applied for separately, the project 
would run alongside the main scheme, adding that Historic England wanted to see a 
legacy from the cultural programming. There had been a view initial meetings to 
ensure that an application was ready for the December deadline for the first draft. 
Cllr E Seward asked when each tranche of applications would be open. The Project 
Enabler said that this was a new scheme for Historic England and they had decided 
on a single application that would cover the four year period. She confirmed that 
there was an umbrella of 8 community organisations that made up the cultural 
consortium and Bob Wright was the nominated lead.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Cllr Seward said that he accepted that part of the remit was to develop talent and 
expertise within North Walsham and he wondered whether anything further would be 
done to progress the previous work that had been undertaken to mark the Peasants’ 
Revolt on an annual basis. The Project Enabler replied that although it had been 
cancelled this year due to the pandemic, she understood that plans were underway 
for it to take place in 2021. She added that although it was not possible to fund an 
existing event, it could be ‘woven’ into the current programme. The Head of 
Economic and Community Development queried whether it needed to be linked to a 
specific month as the Tourism Sector Support Grant scheme could be a possible 
funding stream if it could be held out of season. 
 

5 PROGRAMME DELIVERY UPDATE 

The Project Manager shared a Gant chart which provided an overview of the 
programme and likely timescales. It was a ‘living’ document that would be populated 
as the scheme progressed.  

 

Community Engagement 

Community engagement was key to the success of the project and ran through the 
full four years. She said that it was not a Council project but was very much driven 
by the community. Referring to the community stakeholder group, she said that it 
had been established to pull the overall project bid together and consideration was 
no being given as to how this could be developed. It was likely that there would be 
some initial community engagement workshops and regular surveys would be 
conducted.  

 
Building Improvement Scheme 
 
The additional funding from the LEP had had an impact on the timeline and it was 
intended that work would be undertaken on developing a process for delivering the 
funding for various conservation projects, probably through a grant application 
scheme that would come on-stream in 2021. The background work would be to 
identify potential buildings that could be helped by this part of the project.  
 
Cedars House 
 
Heritage architects had been appointed to undertake work. Condition and site 
surveys were underway and once the full condition of the property was known and 
the likely cost of reparation and bringing it back into use then a scoping study would 
be undertaken.  
 
Town Centre Place-making 
 
This was the biggest part of the project and included improvements to the street-
scape and accessibility. The brief was currently being worked on and tendering and 
procurement would be the next stage. There would be a significant element of 
consultation regarding this aspect of the scheme.  
 
Historical Research and Skills Development  
 
Historic England were very keen on this and had identified North Walsham as a 
research focus for the region. It did overlap with some of the work being undertaken 
by the Cultural Consortium. HE had offered to provide support with some of this, 
including the services of their lead photographer who would run a photography 

Page 2



workshop with Paston College students, although this was likely to be pushed back 
to Spring 2021.  
 
Interpretation and Signage 
 
This would commence much later in the project as it linked in with other elements of 
the project that would need to commence first. 
 
The Chairman said that he wanted to emphasise the importance of involving local 
businesses, including new businesses. It was a two-way conversation and should 
involve listening carefully and adapting accordingly. This was particularly important 
as it was a joint effort and would require financial contributions from businesses so 
buy-in to the project from the outset was crucial. 
 
Cllr V Gay said that the historical research and skills element of the project was very 
important. She said that there was a strong desire on the part of North Walsham to 
have more visitors and a good insight into the history and background of the town 
could drive this. She also said that she wanted to stress the importance of 
conservation skills. The District had 81 conservation areas and it was challenging to 
find people with the right skills to undertake work and this was an area that needed 
to be promoted and developed.  
 
The Economic Growth Manager said that the business community was a key 
stakeholder in the project and it should be recognised that in the longer term the 
connections and engagement generated through involvement in the scheme could 
be a catalyst for future projects. Support for the Chamber of Commerce or a new 
group that would continue long term was vital as was working with them to support 
new ways of doing business via the digital economy. Officers were looking to work 
with businesses on these elements imminently and also to encourage them to get 
involved with the wider project.  
 
The Chairman said that several of the new businesses that had recently come into 
the town had been keen to get involved with the project.  
 
STAKEHOLDER GROUPS AND TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
The Head of Economic & Community Development explained that the terms of 
reference template shared with members was generic and could be adapted by 
stakeholders to reflect their specific group. He said that by establishing stakeholder 
groups, it was hoped that a seamless dialogue with interested parties could be 
achieved and that they would provide a sounding board on key issues, adding that 
the ultimate aim was to leave a long-term legacy for engagement between 
community groups in the town. Further discussion would be needed about 
representatives on each of these groups before the next meeting. He concluded by 
saying that the Council would work in close partnership with the stakeholder groups 
but the direction of the groups would be very much driven by them. He said that 
principal organisations in the town would be invited to get involved along with ‘hard 
to reach’ groups. 
 
Cllr Gay said that the whole project had been borne out of community support and 
concord and it was right that they should continue to play a key part in the delivery 
phase.  
 
The Chairman said that a rolling forum would work well, particularly in light of the 
pandemic. It was important to be clear on the parameters of the project to ensure 

Page 3



that expectations were managed. However, a two-way dialogue would ensure this. 
 
The Project Manager said that positive discussions had already taken place with 
Paston College and the High School and a meeting was scheduled with a local 
youth group.  
 
Cllr Seward said that the Market Towns Initiative (MTI) was a joint Town Council / 
Regenerate North Walsham initiative and they had worked very well together. 
Regarding the parameters, it was important to explain that the work would focus on 
the conservation area of the town centre. He supported the involvement of the 
school and college as this would bring the views of young people to the fore.  
 
QUICK IMPROVEMENTS 
 
The Project Manager said that work was underway on Cedar House and the next 
focus would be to establish the brief for the townscape improvement work. Once the 
design work was done for the whole area then the separate elements would be 
implemented. 
 
Regarding prioritisation, Church Approach and the adjacent businesses would be 
looked at early on. Other areas would be identified once the design brief was 
complete. Quick wins were important because they demonstrated a commitment to 
the project. 
 
The Project Enabler said that infrastructure was key to the town-centre place-making 
as social interaction was very important and this had been demonstrated by an 
increase in the number of people using outdoor seating at cafes and restaurants 
during the pandemic. Any work that could be done to identify areas that could 
facilitate this would be beneficial. 
 
The Chairman agreed, saying that the work in the precinct supported by the MTI 
scheme, clearly showed an increase in social interaction and if this could be 
replicated then it would have a very positive impact. Cllr Seward agreed that the 
precinct was a good example of how a better environment could be created for 
people to socialise and eat. He added that any work on Church approach should 
ideally be undertaken during January to March before the summer season started. 
 
The Chairman said that the next two items of business contained confidential 
information and proposed that the meeting went into private business: 
 
RESOLVED 
 
“That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of 
Part I of Schedule 12A (as amended) to the Act 
 
PRIVATE BUSINESS 
 
Cllr Seward outlined the current position regarding Black Swan Loke and options 
were discussed. The Estates & Asset Strategy Manager was asked to make further 
enquiries. 
 
The Project Enabler said that it would be hard to achieve the proposals as part of the 
Heritage Action Zone project but agreed that it did link in well with the scheme. 

Page 4



 
A discussion ensued regarding possible ‘quick wins’ in relation to the boundary of 
the Mitre Tavern Car Park. The Head of Economic and Community Development 
suggested that this could be fed into the appropriate stakeholder group for input. The 
Project Enabler commented that an initial piece of work should be undertaken to 
establish where people accessed the town – or the ‘desire lines’, she added that it 
could fall within the place-making aspect of the scheme. Cllr Seward said that he 
was supportive of sounding people out and suggested that the Town Council and 
Regenerate North Walsham were asked to put together a proposal for this part of 
the town. 
 
AGREED 
 
To formally request that North Walsham Town Council and Regenerate North 
Walsham put together a proposal for improvements to this part of the town. 
 
The Project Enabler added that there was also the Business Improvement Scheme 
and this area could be considered within this. 
 

Cedar House 

 
 The Working Party had a discussion about options regarding the future of Cedar 

House, including the possibility of a wedding venue and events. Cllr Gay agreed that 
options for use as an event venue should be explored. The Head of Economic and 
Community Development said that the condition survey would be key – particularly 
the condition of the barns. A design brief should be undertaken so that all of the 
proposals could be explored. Then a feasibility study could be produced and the 
business case outlined.  
 
The Project Manager said that the scoping study could look at the possibility of a 
wedding venue, offices, cafeteria facilities and what could be built at the back. The 
Project Enabler added that it was important to have an overview of what could be 
done with the space. Historic England wanted to see the site used as a whole so the 
barns should be considered too. 

  
  
7 ISSUES AND RISK LOG 

 
 The Project Manager said that work was ongoing relating to the analysis of risks. 

She would provide an update to a future meeting of the Working Party.  
 

8 COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 The Communications Officer was in attendance. The Chairman thanked her and the 
team for all the work they had done so far. She replied that the media coverage had 
been very well received and there had been no negative feedback. 
 
 

9 ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 Cllr Seward suggested that a district council member from one of the neighbouring 
villages could be included in the stakeholder groups. 
 
It was agreed that the next meeting would take place when there was sufficient 

Page 5



progress to report. 
 

  
  
 The meeting ended at 15.45pm 
 
 

 
______________ 

Chairman 

Page 6



North Walsham Cultural programming summery 

 

Our Cultural programme will devise and deliver a wide range of events aimed at all age and other 
groupings. Each will be created using community input and participation, to ensure a truly 
community focussed programme. 

North Walsham has a rich and unique heritage and character on which will inspire our programme 

design. Pivotal events such as the peasants’ revolt and the formation of the agricultural worker’s 

union demonstrate Norfolk’s culture of ‘dew different’. The town has a rebellious streak running 

through its history, and we will seek to reflect this in our cultural programme  

The programmes outcomes are for the community to have, 

• Increased understanding, perception and pride in the town’s heritage and especially of the 

importance and value of the High Street 

• An understanding of the benefits of the HS HAZ funded improvement works in town 

• A legacy of experience and skills that ensure self-funded continuation of events that began under 

this programme. 

 

Project Plan  

1 Discovery phase  

Research on themes, storylines and anecdotes to inform detailed project development. Involving the 

Heritage Centre/ Group, Norfolk Records Office and the ongoing Heritage England research project 

on the town centre and community involvement. 

 

2 Design phase 

Use the outputs from these workshops to generate scripts, scores and artworks etc for events 

throughout the whole delivery. Workshops will be held early in 2021 between project team/ event 

providers with the wider community. These will actively engage with young citizens through school 

and college groups and with societies and community organisations, with ‘hard to reach’ groups via 

Good Neighbours and with self-selecting members of public, to discuss the heritage of the town.  

3 Delivery 

The timeline of events will be linked to: 

 Established events such as the Norwich Festival, North Norfolk Open Studios and The 
‘Battle of North Walsham, 1381 revisited’ event (2021 = 640th anniversary).  

 Historic anniversaries such as the 250th anniversary of Nelson leaving Paston School  

 Tied into milestones in the HS HAZ physical works – completion of Market Place (Easter 
2022), restoration of Cedar House, and celebrating the completion of the project in April 
2024 etc. 

 

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



The key events identified to date are listed below: 

 Launch event - Publicity and information on scope timeline and how to get involved. To tie in 
with start of HAZ construction works 

 Major productions – Theatre Merchants play. Based on workshops/ engagement or on an 
already researched investigation of a curious and macabre Gothic tale set in Eighteenth 
century North Walsham. Taster and full performances. Indoor/ promenade. 

 Orchestras Live musical events. A strand of place-based creative activity, involving a 
renowned professional orchestra and the people of North Walsham. This will form part of a 
wider cultural programme of events to increase community wellbeing and aspiration within 
the Heritage Action Zone, helping to regenerate the town centre whilst contributing to 
community cohesion and pride of place 

 Smaller productions, which we hope will become self-funding annual events after the 
programme ends in 2023.  

o Anthology of annual plays by Walsham Drama & Singing Club. Bert, a fictionalised 
North Walsham local, will introduce the production and speak about the various 
changes that have occurred in the town during his lifetime. References to past and 
present landmarks and public/commercial/social amenities in the town 

o The People’s Voices - annual musical events based on North Walsham heritage led 
by New Stages - research, skills development, creating and writing, rehearsing and 
performing. The project will also integrate with North Walsham People’s Choir and 
the Creative Wellbeing Workshop programme of New Stages 

o Each year an agreed theme from North Walsham’s heritage will be identified, 
provisionally ‘protest’ (peasants’ revolt, agricultural union etc) ‘war’(WW1 and WW2 
etc) and ‘traders’ (markets, shops). Each group will produce their event on a different 
aspect of that theme. 

 annual plays by Paston College students, presented to student and public 
audiences in various venues 

 annual plays by North Walsham High School students, presented to student 
and public audiences in various venues 
 

 Exhibitions, again we hope for some legacy continuation of some of these  
o annual art exhibition/ participation by public and North Norfolk Open Studios, linked 

to drama themes above 
o annual Paston themed exhibition by Paston Heritage as part of the NHLF funded 

Paston 600, living history interpreters. May include 3D virtual recreation of St 
Nicholas church. Paston Pathways historic guided walks to Paston and Bacton 

o annual art exhibition by Paston College students of their year’s work 
o pop-up exhibitions in disused shops 

 

 Artist in residence possibly within The Cedars for periods prior to decision when safe to do 
so/ works not in progress 

 Guided heritage walks, in various styles, led by Heritage Group historians, and/ or by 
entertainers 

 Guided tours of heritage locations – including HAZ restoration works in progress, including 
normally unseen cellars and roofs etc 

 Annual Lord of Misrule. Building on medieval tradition and North Walsham’s rebellious past. 
Lord of Misrule appointed to lead Christmas revelries. This could be a mince pie eating 
contest, a mumming play, a high street advent calendar or any other idea they come up with.  

 Heritage themed stall/ activities at Childrens day and Fun day events as well at the 1381 
event 

 

Page 8


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	6 Cultural Programming

